DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 332 996 SP 033 140

Heller, Mel P.; Sindelar, Nancy W. AUTHOR

Developing an Effective Teacher Mentor Program. TITLE

Fastback 319.

INSTITUTION Phi Delta Kappa Educational Foundation, Bloomington,

Ind.

REPORT NO ISBN-0-87367-319-0

PUB DATE 91 NOTE 25p.

Guides - General (050) PUB TYPE

MF01/PC01 Plus Postage. EDRS PRICE

DESCRIPTORS Administrator Role; *Beginning Teacher Induction;

Beginning Teachers; Elementary Secondary Education;

*Helping Relationship; Interprofessional

Relationship; *Mentors; *Program Development; Program

Evaluation

ABSTRACT

School districts considering a mentoring program need to consider four things: (1) the reasons for a teacher mentor program; (2) how to start such a program; (3) administrative support needed for a successful program; and (4) pitfalls to avoid. The reasons for having a mentor program are that it benefits the new teacher, the mentor, and the school. The new teacher's opportunities to exchange views with an experienced teacher is a distinct benefit to him/her. The mentor benefits also, however, because of the opportunity to share views, experiences, and strategies. The improved teaching that usually results is an asset to the school. Starting a program involves six stages: establishing a rationale, setting criteria for the selection of mentors, defining roles, inviting the mentors, training the mentors, and evaluating the program. To be successful, the program must have administrative support from the board of education, the superintendent, the central office staff, the teacher union, and the principal. As with any new program, anticipating problems can help to avoid them. Some pitfalls are: overdependence on the part of the protege, ego problems on the part of the mentor, and the evaluation dilamna arising from the mentor's dual role of confidant and evaluator. Mentorship programs promote professionalism by providing continuous staff development during the first year of teaching. (AMH)

from the original document.



Reproductions supplied by EDRS are the best that can be made

^{*******************************}

FASTBACK

315

ED332996

"PERMISSION TO REPRODUCE THIS MATERIAL HAS BEEN GRANTED BY

D. Klemer

TO THE EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION CENTER (ERIC)."

Developing an Effective Teacher Mentor Program

Mel P. Heller, Nancy W. Sindelar

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Office of Educational Research and Improvement

EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION CENTER (ERIC)

- This document has been reproduced as received from the person or organization originating it.
- ☐ Minor changes have been made to improve raproduction quality
- Points of view or opinions stated in this document do not necessarily represent official OERI position or policy.

PHI DELTA KAPPA EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION

. 2

BEST COPY AVAILABLE







NANCY W. SINDELAR

Mel P. Heller is a professor in the Department of Educational Leadership and Policy Studies at Loyola University of Chicago. He has taught at all levels, from elementary school to graduate school. A former superintendent, he is the author of approximately 200 publications, including fastback 36 *Preparing Educational Leaders: New Challenges and Perspectives.* He is a recognized authority and lecturer on leadership and staff development. Heller received the Outstanding Educator of America Award, 1972; DePaul University Distinguished Alumni Award, 1977; and Loyola Phi Delta Kappa Leadership Award, 1988.

Nancy W. Sindelar is dean of instruction at Morton High School in Berwyn/Cicero, Illinois. She has developed mentor teacher programs for a number of school districts and has made presentations on mentoring at state and national conferences. Sindelar's other professional interests and publications focus on teacher evaluation and dismissal, teacher and student rights, and writing across the curriculum. Sindelar holds a Ph.D. in educational leadership and administrative policy from Loyola University of Chicago, a C.A.S. in administration from Concordia University, an M.A. in literature from DePaul University, and a B.S. in English education from Northwestern University.

Series Editor, Derek L. Burleson



Developing an Effective Teacher Mentor Program

by
Mel P. Heller
and
Nancy W. Sindelar

Library of Congress Catalog Card Number 91-60200 ISBN 0-87367-319-0 Copyright © 1991 by the Phi Delta Kappa Educational Foundation Bloomington, Indiana This fastback is sponsored by the South Central Iowa Chapter of Phi Delta Kappa, which made a generous contribution toward publication costs.

The chapter sponsors this fastback to honor W. Paul Forney for his 50 years of active membership in Phi Delta Kappa, for the leadership and inspiration he has given to the chapter, and for the example he has been to the teaching profession.



Table of Contents

Why Have a Teacher Mentor Program?	7
Benefits for the New Teacher	
Benefits for the Mentor	9
Benefits for the School	9
How to Start a Program	11
Selecting the Mentors	
Training the Mentors	
Evaluating the Program	
Administrative Support for a Successful	
Teacher Mentor Program	16
Pitfalls to Avoid in Teacher Mentor Programs	18
Conclusion	21
References	22



Why Have a Teacher Mentor Program?

The term *mentor* has its origin in Homer's *Odyssey*, when Odysseus entrusted the education of his son, Telemachus, to a wise and learned man named Mentor. Since then, it has had a long and distinguished history.

Mentoring is simply the advice from a respected, experienced person provided to someone who needs help. Informal mentorship exists whenever one person explains to another the how or the why of something. Formal mentorship occurs as an organized, systematic relationship of providing and receiving assistance and insight. The provider is the mentor; the recipient is the protégé. Both informal and formal mentorship take place in business, medicine, law, and other professions.

In education the main focus of the mentor-protégé relationship is experiential learning. Mentors are seasoned, experienced teachers who act as teachers, guides, counselors, role models, and friends to new teachers. This relationship results in benefits for the new teacher, the mentor, and for the school organization. The new teacher or protégé receives knowledge, skills, support, and inspiration, while the mentor derives satisfaction, professional fulfillment, loyalty, and prestige. As a result of the mentoring relationship, the school organization achieves increased productivity, more effective instruction, and reduced turnover, because the mentorship has provided a systematic induction into the organization.



Benefits for the New Teacher

Research indicates that beginning teachers want to achieve professional autonomy and status equality with their colleagues (Lortie 1975), but that 92% do not seek help from colleagues except indirectly by swapping stories about personal experiences (Glidewell et al. 1983). This method of experience transfer not only hides novices' weaknesses but also prevents them from obtaining help with problems. Gray and Gray (1985) assert that "more than experience swapping is needed: a sense of community must be established, consisting of interdependence, shared concerns, a sense of common fate, and a sense that others stand by when one is under stress or uncertainty about what to do" (p. 39).

A study of 602 first-year teachers in New York City (Sacks and Bradley 1985) found that beginning teachers look to mentors for moral support, guidance, and feedback (24%); discipline and management skills (20%); curriculum and lesson planning (18%); school routines and scheduling (15%); motivation techniques (6%); and individualized instruction (2%). Studies of successful mentor programs indicate that mentors provide assistance and support in all these areas, which are critical to the professional success and personal well-being of new teachers.

For the protégé to benefit from the relationship, the mentor must be available, approachable, and receptive (Egan 1986). Although the mentor's views may carry more weight than those held by the protégé, the protégé's ideas, questions, attitudes, and style should influence the mentor's advice and direction. As the protégé grows in competence and confidence, decision making becomes increasingly more collaborative. The two become a team and must be able to share ideas openly. The very fact that the novice is afforded regular, ongoing opportunities to express views to a seasoned performer is a distinct benefit for the new teacher.



8

Benefits for the Mentor

While mentor relationships offer a variety of benefits to the protégé, there also are benefits for the mentor. By explaining such things as school handbooks, rules, traditions, and expectations, the mentor has the satisfaction that comes from exercising leadership and transferring important information to another. Additionally, the opportunity to help shape the professional growth of a protégé by sharing instructional strategies and insights is challenging and rewarding. Answering questions, making suggestions, and demonstrating skills involves the mentor in a process of self-examination and introspection about the art and science of teaching. The questions and concerns of the protégé require that the mentor be well prepared in instructional, management, and leadership roles.

Also, the protégé can share with the mentor new content and teaching strategies. Mentors may be surprised by how much the protégé knows about subject matter and methodology, and a healthy competition can result if the mentor is open to suggestions from the protégé.

Ultimately, the protégé can be a source of knowledge and inspiration for the mentor. They can learn from each other in a mutually supportive environment. Once paired with a protégé, the mentor has a ready, critical ear in a colleague who both receives and shares in the development of professional expertise.

Benefits for the School

The school also benefits greatly from mentorship activities. The opportunity for teachers to help each other to be better teachers is an obvious asset. Another benefit is that new personnel are inducted into the positive norms of the organization. Research and experience show that a new teacher will find a mentor of some kind; however, it is better to have a good mentor program in place to promote and nurture excellent teaching, good classroom management, adherence to school rules and regulations, and positive attitudes. In addition,

there is a certain esprit de corps that develops from an effective mentor program. This spirit can be contagious and foster innovation throughout the school.

Networking is another benefit of mentorship to the organization. Networking involves contacts between two or more people in which each plays the role of mentor and protégé at different times and to different degrees (Haring-Hidore 1987). Mentors can meet and share insights about their work, and protégés can share their experiences. The isolation of teaching is broken down; and as the mentoring program progresses, this networking can lead to an ever-expanding pool of good ideas.

Improved instruction is the ultimate goal of a mentoring program. When the community becomes aware of how teachers help each other to become better teachers, it has a concrete example of how the school is working to improve; and community support usually will be forthcoming.



How to Start a Program

The first stage in developing a teacher mentor program is to establish a rationale for the program. In addition to the benefits outlined in the last chapter, a needs assessment should be conducted to determine the specific needs of new teachers in a school or district. These needs, then, become the basis or rationale for the program.

The second stage is to establish criteria for the selection of mentors and to define their roles. A committee composed of faculty and administrators is a good structure for determining the roles to be played by the mentors. Also, new teachers should have input, because their needs will strongly influence the nature of the program. Once the mentors have been selected, they, too, will have additional suggestions for the program.

Mentor roles might include the following:

- to increase the protégé's instructional competence;
- to increase the protégé's self-confidence;
- to be a resource to the protégé in the areas of discipline, classroom management, curriculum, and lesson planning;
- to be a resource to the protégé in the areas of school policy, procedures, and routines; and
- to be a friend.

Once the roles are defined, the duration of the mentorship period must be determined. Mentors will want to know the extent of their commitment. While informal mentorships may continue for a number of years, the formal mentor period usually extends for one academic year.

Selecting the Mentors

Once a clear rationale has been established, the mentors and protégés need to be selected. The protégés, of course, will be the new teachers hired by the district. Criteria for the selection of mentors should include the following:

- 1. Mentors should be excellent teachers. Mentors should be teachers who have been judged by their supervisors, based on objective criteria, to have the ability to plan and implement organized, academically focused lessons. They should have excellent classroom-management skills and use disciplinary methods that are consistent with school policy. They should create a learning climate that cultivates student achievement and respect for learning and for the teacher. Finally, they should be introspective about their own teaching and be able to articulate the reasons for the instructional decisions they make. From their experiences they should know what to attend to and what to ignore. Instructional decisions, such as when to stay with a topic and when to move on, should be based on teaching context and the needs of students.
- 2. Mentors should be team players. Mentors should have a positive attitude toward the school and the persons who make up the school community. While not ignoring problems, mentors should support the system with an attitude of looking at the cup as half full instead of half empty.
- 3. Mentors should match the subject area and grade level of their protégés. It is important that the mentor and protégé match with regard to subject area and grade level be as close as possible. Ideally, the protégé second-grade teacher should be matched with a mentor who is a second-grade teacher; a new high school English teacher hired to teach multiple sections of Creative Writing and Speech should be paired with a mentor with expertise in these subject areas. Also, scheduling of common preparation periods and lunch periods facilitates communication in the mentoring relationship.

Other characteristics of good mentors are that they are peopleriented and even-tempered; they respect and like their subordinates and engender trust and respect in others (Clawson 1979). Alleman (1982) found successful mentors to be confident, secure, flexible, altruistic, warm and caring, and sensitive to the needs of protégés.

Once individuals with these characteristics have been identified, the principal or superintendent invites them to become mentors. The invitation should communicate that those invited are viewed as effective teachers, whose experience and skills will be most helpful in working with new teachers in the school. While potential mentors should feel honored to be invited, they should not be obligated to accept the assignment. A sample mentor invitation letter is shown below.

Sample Invitation to a Prospective Mentor

Dear		

The district will be hiring a number of new teachers next year. In order to introduce them to school routines and procedures and help them to become more effective instructors, we would like to assign a mentor to each new teacher. Because you are an excellent teacher and have made many valuable contributions to the district over the years, I am inviting you to become a participant in the Teacher Mentor Program.

As a mentor, you will be matched with a new teacher and asked to help him or her during their first year. You will receive mentor training during a one-day workshop on __(date)_. At that time you will learn more about the roles and responsibilities of mentorship.

Please let me know it you are able to accept this invitation to become a mentor.

Sincerely,	
Principal	_



Training the Mentors

Once the mentors have been selected and their general roles have been defined, a training component is necessary to help the mentors understand the needs of beginning teachers. A one-day training session of four to five hours should be scheduled before the beginning of the academic year.

A beginning activity might be to ask the mentors to recall an important mentor in their own lives and the things that person did which contributed to their professional development. The training should include an overview of the characteristics of a novice teacher, a discussion of mentor roles and responsibilities as defined by the district, guidelines for classroom visitations between mentors and protégés, a review of research on effective instruction (teacher planning, clarity of instruction, questioning strategies, teacher feedback, classroom management, instructional organization, and student motivation), a review of the stages of the mentor relationship and how long that relationship will last, and a clarification of the evaluation role of the mentor.

Mentors should be provided with a simple mentoring handbook, which is reviewed during training and serves as a guide for the duration of the mentor period. The handbook might include the following topics:

- Research base for mentoring,
- Basic purposes of the mentor program,
- Suggested roles for the mentor,
- Guidelines for class visits,
- Summary of effective schools research,
- Summary of discipline and due process procedures, and
- Summary of the attendance policy.

After the training session, the mentors and new teachers can be introduced at a luncheon or other social setting, which is scheduled prior to the first day of school.



Evaluating the Program

As with any new program, the teacher mentor program should be closely monitored during its first year. This should begin with a formal written evaluation of the training session and suggestions for topics the mentors might want covered in a follow-up session later in the year.

There also should be formal evaluations by mentors at the end of the first quarter and mid-year in the program. The first-quarter evaluation should focus on the mentors' success in meeting the established goals, including ways that administrators could be more helpful in enabling the mentors and protégés to achieve those goals. The mid-year evaluation should include a trouble-shooting session at which the mentors discuss their roles and the ways by which they can improve their mentoring responsibilities.

At the end of the year, the program should be evaluated by both mentors and protégés. Protégés should be asked how successfil the program was in helping them adjust to school routines and procedures, improve their teaching, and feel "at home" in the district. The mentors should evaluate the program using these same criteria and also whether being a mentor helped them to be more introspective about their own teaching.

At the end of the year, the school district should evaluate the program in terms of the costs and benefits. Among the costs to consider are stipends paid to mentors and the trainer for the training session, preparation of training manuals and other printed materials, and food service for the training luncheon and other meetings. Benefits can be assessed through the mid-year and end-of-the-year evaluations by mentors and protégés.



Administrative Support for a Successful Teacher Mentor Program

Administrative support is crucial for the success of a mentorship program. Matching mentors and protégés, scheduling contact time, and managing and evaluating the program all require administrative support. This support must originate with the school board and be reinforced at every level in the administrative hierarchy. Following is a brief discussion of the levels of administrative support needed for a successful program.

Board of Education. Beyond authorizing the teacher mentor program, the school board must provide the resources necessary for success, including personnel, time, materials, and some funding. The board should hold the administration accountable for structuring, monitoring, and evaluating the program and should request periodic reports on the progress and problems of the program.

Superintendent. The superintendent's involvement in the teacher mentor program will depend on day-to-day priorities. Except in very small school districts, the superintendent is usually physically removed from the daily operations in individual school buildings. However, this physical distance does not preclude being well informed, allocating resources, and giving the program a high profile. It is important for the superintendent to communicate in word and deed that the mentor program is an essential part of the district's staff-development effort devoted to the induction of new teachers. The superintendent also must work with the board to ensure that the program is adequately funded.



16

Central Office Staff. Other than the superintendent, the central office staff probably will not be directly involved in the teacher mentor program. However, the central office can provide valuable services in the areas of mentor training, research on effective teaching, and curriculum resources. This staff also can foster support by publicizing and interpreting the program to the community.

, Si

Teacher Union. Obviously, the teacher union has a role in the teacher mentor program because it involves issues in the union contract. Hours of work, class size, planning time, duty-free lunch periods, and remuneration are but a few of the issues that must be negotiated. Rather than analyze all the potential grievance issues that might arise, suffice it to say that the union must be involved at the initial stages of organizing the program. Since professionalism is at the heart of a mentor program, union representatives should be reasonable about the conditions needed to implement the program.

Principal. The principal, of course, is a key figure in the planning and implementation of a teacher mentor program. The principal will be involved in the recruitment and selection of mentors, the assignment of mentors to protégés, scheduling, and other monitoring activities. The principal must keep the board and superintendent apprised of progress and must communicate regularly with the mentors and protégés.

Even though school schedules are complex, the principal needs flexibility in order to give mentors and protégés time together to observe one another's classes or to discuss curricular matters. This might mean arranging for the mentor and protégé to have classrooms in close proximity, having the same prep and lunch periods, or sharing office space.

Other ways the principal can help to ensure the success of the program include being visible and soliciting feedback. The visibility of the principal during the mentor training sessions and throughout the program indicates positive support. Soliciting systematic feedback provides the principal with information about what is working and what is not. If a particular mentor relationship is not working, personnel changes can be made, or counseling may be necessary.



Pitfalls to Avoid in Teacher Mentor Programs

As in any new program, problems can arise unexpectedly in a teacher mentor program. Anticipating such problems can help to avoid them. Common problems include the protégé becoming too dependent on the mentor, ego factors affecting professional decisions, mismatching of the mentor and the protégé, betraying confidences, and failing to clarify the evaluative role of the mentor.

Dependency. The very nature of the mentoring relationship assumes some degree of dependency by the protégé. But the degree is not static; it should change to less dependency as the program progresses. There is no specific timeline for the move from dependency to independence, but some benchmarks should be established in the initial planning stages for purposes of formalizing progress. However, these benchmarks cannot be too rigid. For example, if it is decided at the outset that the protégé will have mastered inductive teaching skills by the end of the second marking period and the protégé demonstrates mastery by the end of the first marking period, the preset benchmark is meaningless and should be put aside. The mentorship program needs structure, but common sense should prevail.

The phases of the mentor/protégé relationship have been identified by Kram (1983) as: 1) initiation, when the relationship is established;

- 2) cultivation, when the relationship becomes more comprehensive;
- 3) separation, when it is necessary for the relationship to change; and
- 4) redefinition, when the relationship has established a new form or



the relationship terminates. Kram found that mentor relationships vary in duration but generally pass through these four "predictable, yet not entirely distinct phases." Phillips (1977) suggests a six-stage continuum: initiation, sparkle (presenting oneself in the best light), development, disillusionment, parting, and transformation. Gehrke and Kay (1984) found that true mentor/protégé relationships are developmental. The relationship grows to be more professional and personal. Then the relationship ends, usually positively, with the protégé benefiting from the knowledge, experience, and advice provided by the mentor.

Ego Problems. Sometimes, the mentor may not be able to "let go" as the protégé become less and less dependent. Having someone dependent on you is often ego-enhancing; but when the protégé is especially able, he or she may challenge the mentor's advice, thus resulting in serious ego problems for both parties involved.

The Evaluation Dilemma. The mentor's role as both confidant and/or evaluator presents a dilemma. Misunderstanding and conflict can arise when a mentor develops a close working relationship with a protégé but is also expected to be the official evaluator. As the district develops its rationale for the program, it must give careful consideration as to whether the mentor will have a formal role in the evaluation of new teachers. If mentors are to have a role in formal evaluation, then the procedures as established by school policy and the union contract must be observed.

This issue must be addressed in the mentor training session, and the training handbook should make very clear the distinction between mentor and evaluator roles.

Our analysis of effective teacher mentor programs reveals that new teachers and administrators are receptive to mentor evaluation. However, many mentors and teacher unions prefer to leave formal evaluation to the principal.

Trust. Successful teacher mentor programs nurture a relationship in which both parties work together to improve their work as educa-

tors. For the mentor and the protégé to relate effectively requires a high level of trust. And because the relationship puts the mentor in the role of confidant, it is very important that confidences are respected by both parties.



Conclusion

77.

With thoughtful and careful planning, an effective teacher mentor program can be implemented following the steps outlined in this fast-back. Central to success are the competence and commitment of the mentors, protégés, and administrators and a school climate that is conducive to sharing and learning together.

A teacher mentor program can be implemented without a lot of extra funding. The success of the program does not depend on money; it depends on an attitude of professionalism. In some places, such as in Connecticut and Indiana, the mentor program is state-funded; and the mentor receives an additional stipend for services performed. Certainly, additional dollars are appreciated, but more important in our view are the personal and professional rewards that come from the mentor relationship.

Mentorship programs not only promote professionalism, they almost guarantee it by providing continuous staff development during that critical first year of teaching when beginning teachers face new challenges every day. Teacher mentor programs can play a vital role in the current efforts to improve our schools.



References

- Alleman, E. "Mentoring Relationships in Organizations: Behavior, Personality Characteristics and Interpersonal Perceptions." Doctoral dissertation, University of Akron, 1982.
- Bellon, Jerry J.; Bellon, Elner; and Blank, M.A. What Really Works: Research-Based Instruction. Knoxville, Tenn.: Bellon and Associates, 1986.
- Berliner, David C. "Implications of Studies of Expertise in Pedagogy for Teacher Education and Evaluation." Paper presented at the 1988 Educational Testing Service Invitational Conference on New Directions for Teacher Assessment, New York City, 1988.
- Blank, Mary Ann. "Mentoring and the Process of Becoming a Teacher." Doctoral dissertation, University of Tennessee, 1988.
- Bova, B.M., and Phillips, R. "The Mentor Relationship: A Study of Mentors and Protégés in Business and Academia." 1981. Eric Document No. 108 233
- Clawson, J. "Superior Subordinate Relationships in Managerial Development." Doctoral dissertation, Harvard Business School, 1979.
- Dufour, Richard. Stevenson High School Mentoring Book. Prairie View, Ill.: Stevenson High School. 1986.
- Egan, J.B. "Induction the Natural Way: Informal Mentoring." Paper presented at the Annual Conference of the National Council of States on Inservice Education, Nashville, Tenn.. 1986.
- Gehrke, N.J., and Kay, R.S. "The Socialization of Beginning Teachers Through Mentor-Protégé Relationships." *Journal of Teacher Education* (May-June 1984): 21-24.



Glidewell, J.S.; Tucker, S.; Todt, M.; and Cox, S. "Professional Support Systems: The Teaching Profession." In New Directions in Helping. San Francisco: Academic Press, 1983.

. . .

- Gray, W., and Gray, M. "Synthesis of Research on Mentoring Beginning Teachers." Educational Leadership (November 1985): 37-43.
- Haring-Hidore, M. "Mentoring as a Career Enhancement Strategy for Women." Journal of Counseling and Development (November 1987): 147-48.
- Kram, K. "Phases of the Mentor Relationship." Academy of Management Journal 26 (1983): 608-25.
- Kram, K. "Mentoring Processes at Work: Developmental Relationships in Managerial Careers." Doctoral dissertation, Yale University, 1980.
- Lortie, D. School Teacher: A Sociological Study. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 1975.
- Phillips, L.L. "Mentors and Protégés: A Study of the Career Development of Women Business Managers and Executives in Business and Industry."

 Doctoral dissertation, University of California-Los Angeles, 1977.
- Sacks, S., and Bradley, P. "Who Teaches the City's Children? A Study of New York City First-Year Teachers." l'aper presented at the Annual Conference of the American Educational Research Association, Chicago, 1985.



PDK Fastback Series Titles

Company of the control of the

147. Myldison and Learning 148. Education in the USSA 148. Taxables with Mauropapers: The Living

Curriculum
181. Statistics
181. Statistics and Answers on Moral Education
184. Meeting and Answers on Moral Education
184. Meeting Learning
188. Education for Curtural Pluratiom: Global
Rooks Story
188. The Public Community College: The People's Linksyster

University
164. Children's Beatin: A Laguery for the Young
166. Tourber Unions and the Power Structure
166. Progressive Education: Locoons from Three

167. Book Education: A Historical Perspective 168. Touching the Loarning Disabled 178. Safety Education in the Elementary School 171. Education in Contemporary Japan 172. The Esheet's Role in the Provention of Child

Abuse

174. Yesth Participation for Early Adolescents:
Learning and Serving in the Community

175. Time Management for Educators

176. Educating Variabily Billed Youth

188. Separataion Made Simple

182. Sehoel Public Reletions: Communicating
to the Community

183. Economic Education Agrees the Curriculum

189. Legal Incube in Education of the Handicapped

187. Melectrosming in the Secondary School: The
Role of the Regular Teacher

188. Tuillen Tax Credits: Feel and Piction

189. Challenging the Officel and Piction

189. The Cace for the Smeller School

191. What You Should Know About Teaching and
Learning Styles

Learning Styles

192. Library Research Strategies for Educators

193. The Teaching of Writing in Our Schools

194. Teaching and the Art of Questioning

195. Understanding the New Right and its Impact on Education

196. The Academic Achievement of Young

Americans
197. Effective Programs for the Marginel High School Student
199. What Should We Be Teaching in the Social Studies?
291. Master Teachers
292. Teacher Proporation and Cortification: The Gall for Reform 283. Proc and Cons of Morit Pay

295. The Case for the AH-Day Kindergarten
296. Philosophy for Children: An Approach to
Critical Thinking
Invision and Children
Riching Television in the Curriculum
riting to Learn Aeroes the Curriculum

Bridge Land And Land

218. Edvestion Vesethers
211. Decided Miking in Educational Settings
213. The Schools Role in Educating Severally
Herodoxyped Statusts
214. Teacher Gares: Magne: Implications for Staff

Development 216. Edeption in Healthy Lifestyles: Carriaulum

implications

217. Adelescent Absolut Abuse

218. Honourest—Add Why

219. America's Changing Families:
A Bolde for Educators

220. Teaching Mildly Intended Children
in the Regular Classroom

221. Changing Schooler: A Processed Solde
for Teaching sold Parants

222. Issues and innerestions in
Foreign Language Education

224. Teaching About Poligion in the Public Schools

225. Premating Visionlary Reading in
School and Home

229. How to Start a School/Susineus Partnership

227. Billing and Education Policy: An International
Perspective

Perspective
228. Plenning for Sindy Abroad
230. Improving Home-Bahool Communications
231. Community Service Projects: Chizenship in

222. Guideor Education: Boyond the Classroom

Wells
223. What Educators Should Know About Copyright
234. Teenage Suicide: What Can the Schools De?
235. Lagel Scoles for Teachers
236. A Medal for Teaching Thinking Stills:
The Instructor Process
237. The Instructor of New Teachers

236. The Case for Book Skills Programs in Higher Education Recruiting Superior Teachers: The Interview

Process
240. Teaching and Teacher Education:
Implementing Referen
241. Learning Through Laughter: Humor in
the Classroom the Classroom 242. High School Dropouts: Causes, Consequences

243. Community Education: Processes and

244. Teeching the Process of Thinking, K-12 245. Decling with Abnormal Schevier in the Classroom

240. Classroom
240. Teaching Science as Inquiry
247. Menter Teachers: The Colifornia (
248. Using Microsomputers in School
Administration

fornia Model

249. Missing and Abdusted Children: The School's Role in Provention 259. A Model for Effective School Discipline (Continued on inside back cover)

74

M HARLE ARAS 6484

Fastback Titles (Continued from back cover)

- 251. Teaching Reading in the Secondary School
- 262. Educational Reform: The Forgottan Half
- 253. Voluntary Raligious Activities in Public Schools: Policy Guidelines
- 264. Teaching Writing with the Microcomputer 255. How Should Teachers Be Educated? An
- **Assessment of Three Reform Reports 256. A Model for Teaching Writing: Process and**
- 257. Preschoof Programs for Handicepped Children 258. Sarving Adolescents' Reading Interests Through Young Adult Literature
- 259. The Year-Round School: Where Laarning Never Stops
- 260. Using Educational Research in the Classroom
- 261. Microcomputers and the Classroom Teacher
- 262. Writing for Professional Publication
- 263. Adopt e School-Adopt e Business
- 264. Teamage Parenthood: The School's Response 265. AIDS Education; Curriculum and Health
- 266. Dialogue Journals: Writing as Conversation
- 267. Preparing Taachers for Urban Schools
- 268. Education: By Invitation Only
- 269. Mission Possible: Innovations in the Bronx Schools
- 270. A Primer on Music for Non-Musician Educators
- 271. Extraordinary Educators: Lessons in Leadership
- 272. Religion and the Schools: Significant Court Decisions in the 1980s.
- 273. The High-Performing Educational Manager
- 274. Student Press and the Hazelwood Decision
- 275. Improving the Textbook Selection Process 276. Effective Schools Research: Practice and
- Promise
- 277. Improving Teaching Through Coaching
- 278. How Children Learn a Second Language
- 279. Eliminating Procrastination Without Putting It
- 280. Early Childhood Education: What Research Tails Us
- 281. Personalizing Staff Development: The Career Lattice Model
- 282. The Elementary School Publishing Center
- 283. The Case for Public Schools of Choice
- 284. Concurrent Enrollment Programs: College Credit for High School Students
- 285. Educators' Consumer Guide to Private Tutoring Services
- 286. Peer Supervision: A Way of Professionalizing

- 287. Differentiated Cereer Opportunities for
- 288. Controversial Issuas in Schools: Dealing with the inevitable
- 289. Interactive Television: Progress and Potential
- 290. Recruiting Minorities Into Teaching
- 291. Preparing Students for Teking Tests
- 292. Creating a Learning Climate for the Early Chiidhood Yaare
- 293. Career Beginnings: Halping Disadvantagad Youth Achiave Their Potantial
- 294. Interactive Videodisc and the Teaching.
- Learning Process 295. Using Microcomputers with Giftad Studants
- 296. Using Microcomputers for Teaching Reading in the Middle School
- 297. Using Microcomputars for Taaching Science
- 298. Student Privacy in the Classroom
- 299. Cooperative Learning
- 300. The Case for School-Based Health Clinics 301. Whole Brain Education
- 302. Public Schools as Public Forums: Use of Schools by Non-School Publics
- 303. Developing Children's Creative Thinking
- Through the Arts 304. Meeting the Needs of Transient Students
- 305. Student Obesity: What Can the Schools Do?
- 306. Dealing with Death: A Strategy for Tragedy
- 307. Whole Language = Whole Learning
- 308. Effective Programs for At-Risk Adolescents
- 309. A Decalogue for Teaching Methematics
- 310. Successful Strategies for Marketing School Levies
- 311. Preparing Better Teacher-Made Tests: A Practical Guide
- 312. Planning and Conducting Better School Caramonias
- 313. Educating Homeless Children: Issues and
- 314. Strategies for Developing Children's Listening Skilis
- 315. Strategies for Involving Parents in Their Children's Education
- 316. Using Electronic Mail in an Educational Setting
- 317. Students and the Law
- 318. Community Colleges in the 1990s
- 319. Developing an Effective Teacher Mentor
- 320. Raising Cerear Aspirations of Hispanic Girls
- 321. Street Gangs and the Schools: A Blueprint for intervention

Single copies of fastbacks are 90¢ (75¢ to Phi Delta Kappa members). Write to This cappa, P.O. Box 789, Bloomington, IN 47402-0789, for quantity discounts ERIC: title or combination of titles.